
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 20 July 2022 
Time: 6.00 p.m. 
Venue: Wallasey Town Hall 
 
Contact Officer: Joe D’Henin, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 0151 691 8139 
e-mail: josephdhenin@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

Please note that public seating is limited therefore members of the public 
are encouraged to arrive in good time. 
 
Wirral Council is fully committed to equalities and our obligations under 
The Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any 
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting, 
please let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to facilitate 
where possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk. 

 
This meeting will be webcast at https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 

Monday 27th June 2022. 
 

5. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS  
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have not 
received an acknowledgement of your question/statement by the 
deadline for submission. 
 

 5.1 Public Questions 
 

  Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 
noon, Friday 15th July to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt 
with in accordance with Standing Order 10 
 

 5.2 Statements and petitions 
 

  Petitions may be presented to the Committee if provided to 
Democratic and Member Services no later than 10 working 
days before the meeting, at the discretion of the Chair. The 
person presenting the petition will be allowed to address the 
meeting briefly (not exceeding three minute) to outline the 
aims of the petition. The Chair will refer the matter to another 
appropriate body of the Council within whose terms of 
reference it falls without discussion, unless a relevant item 
appears elsewhere on the Agenda. If a petition contains more 
than 5,000 signatures, it will be debated at a subsequent 
meeting of Council for up to 15 minutes, at the discretion of 
the Chair. Please give notice of petitions to 
committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 
 

 5.3 Questions by Members 
 

  Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8. 
 
 

6. EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 2020-21, AUDITORS 
REPORT COMPANY GOVERNANCE 2020-21 AND MERSEYSIDE 
WASTE VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT 2020-21 (Pages 5 - 126) 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
 The terms of reference for this committee can be found at the end of 

this agenda. 
 
 

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 27 June 2022 
 

Present: Councillor S Mountney (Chair) 

 
 Councillors S Kelly 

Jason Walsh 
A Davies 
 

T Cox 
S Powell-Wilde 
 

   Independent Persons  J Byrne 
        P McAlister 
 

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chair opened the meeting and reminded everyone that the meeting was 
being webcast and a copy was retained on the Council’s website. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

3 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were asked to consider whether they had any disclosable pecuniary 
interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection with any item(s) on 
this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state what they were. There were 
no declarations of interests. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
Resolved –  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2022 be approved. 
 

5 PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS  
 
There were no questions, petitions or statements received for this meeting. 
 

6 INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor presented his report which identified and evaluated 
the performance of the Internal Audit Service and included details of any 
issues arising from the actual work undertaken during the period 1st March to 
31st May 2022.  
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Members noted the counter-fraud training and campaign being undertaken 
and that further reports were to follow on particular matters and that the level 
of detail in the reports would be reviewed. 
 
Resolved –  
That the report be noted. 
 

7 ANNUAL ARMC REPORT 2021-22  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor presented a report on behalf of the Chair which 
summarised the work undertaken by the Committee in the previous year. 
Reporting this annually  
complied with best professional practice.  
 
Resolved –  
That the Annual ARMC Report for 2021-22 be approved and submitted to 
Council. 
 

8 CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2021-22  
 
Mark P Niblock Chief Internal Auditor presented his report which he was 
required to present annually and which provided assurance about the 
controls. It had been a challenging year with pandemic related activities.  
 
In answer to Members’ questions, it was established that: 

 Audit staffing had been static to date  

 Hybrid working had worked well but was being closely monitored 

 The audit of Section 106 agreements had shown risks around the 
collection of monies and record keeping and there were actions to 
improve the process from start to finish. Follow up audit work to 
evaluate progress on actions had been scheduled for later in the year 
and the outcomes from this would be reported to Committee  

 There was staff training around the ‘no PO no pay’ policy as well as 
improved controls and there had been a marked improvement in the 
figures 

 data centre security had been an issue as the data collection centre 
was used by non-Council staff but most data had now been moved to a 
specialist data warehouse.  

 
Resolved –  
That the report be noted. 
 

9 CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Risk, Continuity and Compliance Manager presented the report of the 
Director of Resources which was a regular risk management update report, 
looking at looking at corporate risks and the efforts to identify and manage 

Page 2



risks. It was noted that the list was dynamic as environments and situations 
changed over time. It included the Council’s risk management arrangements 
and areas of risk management focus over the following year.  
 
Members were interested in data security and would be sent information on 
this outside of the meeting. 
 
Resolved –  
That the report be noted. 
 

10 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN WIRRAL COUNCIL 2021-22  
 
The Senior Finance Manager Strategy, Policy & Financial Accounts presented 
the report of the Director of Resources which detailed the plan for the audit of 
the Council’s financial statements by the Council’s appointed auditors, Grant 
Thornton, which was to take place during the Summer, to be reported back to 
the Committee in October 2022. The complexity of finances during the year 
was noted  
 
Members discussed the detail and the harshness of the reports as well as the 
timeframe. 
 
Resolved – That  
(1)  the proposed Audit Plan be noted and it be confirmed that the 

arrangements set out will meet the Committee’s expectations with 
regard to providing independent scrutiny.  

(2)   the report provided by the auditors be noted.  
(3)  the update of the Statement of Accounts be noted. 
 

11 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND 2021-22  
 
Sarah Ironmonger from Grant Thornton presented the report of the Director of 
Resources which informed Members of the plan for the external audit of the 
Merseyside Pension Fund’s Statutory financial statements for 2021/22. The 
results of this audit will be reported back to the Committee.  
 
Members queried some of the terms in the report.  
 
Resolved –  
That the external audit plan for 2021/22 as prepared by Grant Thornton 
be noted. 
 

12 REVIEW  OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  
 
The Committee’s Solicitor presented the report of the Director of Law and 
Governance which detailed proposed changes to the Contract Procedure 
Rules following a review of the provisions. They had to be reviewed every two 

Page 3



years. Some of the changes were technical regarding change of rules such as 
those caused by leaving the EU. Others derived from a report by CIPFA which 
recommended that the limits for contracts being allowed by officers be 
changed to speed up contracts where there was little risk and the value for 
money was recognised.  
 
Members queried the detail in the report and expressed reservations 
regarding the level and route for reporting of breaches in section 3.2.3. They 
felt the new version weakened the controls.  
 
Councillor Tony Cox proposed that for section 3.2.3 the original text be 
preserved.  
This was seconded by the Chair and agreed by assent. 
 
Members also clarified the procedures around the opening of tenders and 
requested a process map to help people unfamiliar with the process.  
 
Resolved –  
That the changes to the Contract Procedure Rules that are highlighted in 
the appendix to this report be approved with the exception of section 
3.2.3 where the original text is to be preserved, and Constitutional and 
Standards Committee be asked to recommend their adoption by the full 
Council as part of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
 
   

 

Page 4



 

 

 

  

 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 26 July 2022 
 

REPORT TITLE: EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 2020-21, 

AUDITORS REPORT COMPANY GOVERNANCE 2020-

21 AND MERSEYSIDE WASTE VALUE FOR MONEY 

REPORT 2020-21 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The Council’s external auditors (Grant Thornton) completed the Council’s main audit 
2020-21 Accounts in January 2022 with the exception of the Whole of Government 
Accounts which are due to be audited in July 2022, following a delay from HM Treasury 
in issuing access to the portal for completion and submission.  The audit findings for the 
Statement of Accounts were reported to the Committee in the form of the Audit Findings 
Report in January 2022.  
 
The auditors are also under a duty to provide an Annual Audit Report of the key 
issues/findings from their audit for consideration by a wider audience across the 
Council, Pension Fund, and its key stakeholders.  
 
That report, the Annual Audit Report, is attached to this paper as Appendix 1, including two 
further reports, Value for Money review Governance of Company and Other Investments as 
Appendix 2 and Merseyside Waste Value for Money report on Merseyside Councils as 
Appendix 3.  Once approved by this Committee, these reports will be taken to Policy and 
Resources Committee for approval and then onto Full Council from where they will be 
placed on the Council’s website. 
 
The Annual Audit Report and the Value for Money review of Governance of Company and 
other Investments contain a set of recommendations for the Council to Implement. These 
recommendations are included as Appendix 4 which provides the action the Council is 
taking or will take to implement those recommendations and when. 
 
As the two reports highlighted above relate to the financial year 2020/21, much time has 
passed, and significant progress has already been made in addressing these 
recommendations. Indeed, some of the recommendations link to the External Assurance 
Review reports published by Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities for 
which the actions are almost completed. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

 

RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is recommended to consider and comment on 
the reports and appendices and approve them for onward approval to Policy and 
Resources Committee, Full Council and then publication on the Council website. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

1.1 The Audit and Risk Management Committee has responsibility for approving the 
Statement of Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) on behalf of 
the Council, which is a requirement under The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
and The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020.  
 

1.2 The Annual Audit Report and associated reports are an essential element of the 
independent external audit process. These reports are to be presented to a 
Committee of the Council for their consideration. 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

2.1 Option to not submit to Committee for comment and approval, however, this would 
not comply with the audit regulations and would be at the detriment of the Council. 

 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  
3.1 Grant Thornton undertook their annual audit of the Council’s financial reporting and 

activities. These reviews are intended to give assurance to both Members, residents 
and external stakeholders that the Council’s financial activities have been 
appropriately reported in its Accounts.  

 
3.2 The detailed findings from this audit were reported to the Audit Risk and 

Management Committee on 24 January 2022 in the form of the Audit Findings 
Report. This confirmed that the Council’s and Pension Fund Accounts for 2020-21 
were unqualified and fairly stated the Council’s finances and as a result the 
Committee approved their publication.  

 
Annual Audit Report and Value For Money Reports 
 
3.3 Grant Thornton has now produced its Annual Audit Report and two value for money 

reports, as appended to this paper, which contains a summary of the relevant 
findings from their work and any key issues which arose. This document reports their 
findings in a form which is more readily accessible to members of the public. These 
reports will be made available alongside the Accounts on the Council’s website. 

 
3.4 The Annual Audit Report reconfirms the audit findings previously reported to this 

Committee: 

 The Accounts presented a true and fair view and were unqualified. 

Page 6



 

 

 Their concerns as to the Council’s financial resilience, planning and sustainability 
with respect to the value for money work undertaken. 

 There is evidence of financial planning to address ongoing funding and budget 
concerns of the Council. 

 
 
3.5 In January 2022, the value for money work was still on-going and is now concluded 

as set out in the two appendices to this report.  The auditors assess our 
arrangements under three headings within the Annual Audit Report. 

 
1. Financial Sustainability, how the Council plans and manages its resources to 

ensure it can continue to deliver its services 
2. Governance, how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and 

properly manages its risks; and 
3. Improving economy, efficiency, and effectiveness, how the Council uses 

information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 
delivers its services. 

 
3.6 The report has made ten recommendations and rated financial sustainability and 

governance as having significant weaknesses, and improving economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness as having no significant weaknesses.  As this report is looking at 
the financial year 2020-21 a number of the recommendations have already been 
introduced during 2021-22 following the reports from CIPFA and Department of 
Levelling-up Housing and Communities.  The Council has agreed with the report’s 
findings, but also recognises the progress the Council has made during 2021-22 and 
to date implementing improvements. The full list of recommendations can be found 
in Appendix 4 along with the actions the Council is taking and has already taken to 
implement them 

 
Value for Money Review Governance of Company and other Investments  
 
3.7 Grant Thornton as part of auditing economy, efficiency, and effectiveness reviewed 

the governance of the Council companies and investments.  This includes group 
companies, joint ventures and partnerships, including any significant investments.  
Grant Thornton findings of this audit are set out in appendix 2 of this report and the 
recommendations including the actions the Council is taking and has already taken 
to implement them is included within Appendix 4. 

 
Value for Money Report - Merseyside Waste Management with Merseyside Councils 
 
3.8 A further report was also undertaken looking at the arrangements the Council has in 

place for Wirral Waste Management Services and this has provided twelve 
recommendations for the Waste Management operation to take forward.  See 
appendix 3 of this report. 

 
Council responses to the external audit reports 
 
3.9 Included within the Annual Audit Report are three main themes for the Council to 

consider its monitoring and reporting to Members to raise awareness of the liability 
for risk associated with these areas. These are: 

Page 7



 

 

 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and the risk associated with taking the 
Annuity method of repayment 

 Public Sector Impact Investment Fund lock in and the potential for the 
anticipated high return from investment not to materialise 

 Regeneration schemes where the Council has provided a guarantee for future 
payment which, if not mitigated could present a significant liability for the 
Council in future years. These being: 
 

o Wirral Waters 
o Birkenhead Commercial District 
o The Hythe 

 
To ensure that Members of the Committee are sighted on the risks and 
mitigations associated within these three areas. It is proposed that individual 
reports are presented to the Committee to provide further detail on these, and 
that an update on the risks are provided to the Committee on an annual basis.  
This will be built into the Committee work programme with the first report being 
presented at its next meeting in October 

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 The cost of the report is part of the audit fee and variations to that fee for additional 
work are notified to the Council.  The contracted audit fee was previously approved 
by the Audit and Risk Management Committee.  

  
4.2 The audit fees for the year 2020/21 have increased from the contracted fees under 

the contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) of £123,095 to 
£234,515.  The increase is due to the additional audit work now required to be 
undertaken by the external auditors since the contract was awarded which includes 
Value for Money Audits and additional testing for specific elements of the accounts 
as set out in the Audit Findings Report brought to the Committee in January 2022.  
The increase in the fee has been approved by the PSAA and discussed with the 
Director of Resources. 

 
      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1  There are no legal aspects related to this matter. 
 
5.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
6.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

require the Statement of Accounts to be produced in line with recommended 
accounting practices.  Failure to do so could result in qualification of the accounts, 
which may lead to further audit costs. 

 

Page 8



 

 

7.2      If any concerns identified by Grant Thornton are not addressed by the Council then 
there is a risk that the Council will not be able to meet its statutory requirements in 
respect to the Statement of Accounts as well as impacting upon the Value for Money 
and Financial Resilience of the Council and the Council’s reputation. 
 

7.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
7.1 None arising directly from this report. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help Council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 

 
9.2 There are no equality implications arising specifically from this report.  The PDF files 

attached may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, users of assistive 
technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact Diane Grisdale if you would like 
this document in an accessible format. 

 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 No direct implications. The content and/or recommendations contained within this 

report are expected to have no impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases. 
 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report have no direct 

implications for community wealth.   
 

 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Diane Grisdale 
  Senior Finance Manager Strategy, Policy & Financial Accounts 
  email:  dianegrisdale@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 – Wirral Council - External Auditors Annual Audit Report 2020-21 
Appendix 2 – Wirral Council – Value for Money Review Governance of Company and other 
Investments 2020-21 
Appendix 3 – Waste Value for Money Report on Merseyside Councils 2020-21 
Appendix 4 – Council report on the value for money findings by Grant Thornton 2020-21 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
External Audit Findings Report 2020-21 
Statement of Accounts 2020-21 
External Audit Plan 2020-21 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Page 9



 

 

Council Meeting  Date 

External Auditors Annual Audit report 2019/20 
External Auditors Annual Audit report 2018/19 
External Auditors Annual Audit report 2017/18 
 

09/03/21 
27/01/20 
11/03/19 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

•

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 50



P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 54



P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

P
age 58



P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

–

–

–

•

–

–

–

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 68



P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

•

–

–

–

•

–

–

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

•

–

–

–

•

•

•

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 72



P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

–

–

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 78



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

•

• Th

–

–

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 82



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 83



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 84



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 85



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

–

–

•

•

–

–

•

•

•

P
age 86



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 87



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 88



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 89



P
age 90



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 91



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

–

–

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 92



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 93



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 94



P
age 95



Commercial in confidence

P
age 96



Commercial in confidence

Edsential CIC Wirral Evolutions 
Limited

Wirral Growth 
Company LLP

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council

Wirral Growth 
Company Nominee 

Limited 

Wirral Holdings 
Limited

P
age 97



Commercial in confidence

P
age 98



Commercial in confidence

Wirral Council

Client Officer: Director 

of Children, Young 

People and Education

Edsential CIC 

Children, Young People 

and Education 

Committee

Wirral Council

Client Officer: 

Director of Adult Social 

Care and Public Health

Wirral Evolutions Ltd

Adult Social Care and 

Public Health 

Committee

Wirral Growth 

Company LLP

Economy, Regeneration 

and Development 

Committee

Wirral Council

Client Officer: 

Director of Economy, 

Regeneration and 

Development

Edsential CIC
WMBC Board 

representation: 
AD of Education 

Wirral Evolutions Limited
WMBC Board 

representation: None 

Wirral Growth Company 
LLP

WMBC Board 
representation: 2 officers 

and 2 members 

Shareholder Board

3 x Councillors (from Policy and Resources 

Committee)

3 x Officers (from Policy and Resources 

Committee)

4 x Officers (inc. Head of Legal and Head of 

Governance) 

Policy and Resources 

Committee

16 x Councillors 

14 x Officers (inc. S151 

officer, Head of Legal and 

Head of Governance)

P
age 99



Commercial in confidence

From Statement of Accounts, for latest available year end. Figures are in £’000s. 

P
age 100



Commercial in confidence

From Statement of Accounts, for latest available year end. Figures are in £’000s. 

P
age 101



Commercial in confidence

P
age 102



Commercial in confidence

P
age 103



P
age 104



P
age 105



Commercial in confidence

P
age 106



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 107



Commercial in confidence

–

–

–

–

–

P
age 108



Commercial in confidence

P
age 109



Commercial in confidence

P
age 110



Commercial in confidence

–

–

–

P
age 111



Commercial in confidence

P
age 112



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 113



Commercial in confidence

P
age 114



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

Value For Money Review Governance of Company and other investments 

Recommendations: 

 

PAGE REF ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

6 First 
bullet 

CIPFA DLUHC 
report on 
halting 
initiatives to 
avoid 
unnecessary 
risk 

The Council should consider all future 
investment in terms of its financial 
resilience 
 

Agreed. The Council has not 
entered into any further such 
investments and at present 
does not intend to do so. 

Director of 
Resources 

Immediate 

7 First 
bullet 

Edsential Given the financial position of the Council, 
it will need to monitor the finances of 
Edsential closely. We note the Council has 
determined that it will face greater costs if 
it were to exit the Company. This decision 
should be revisited annually given the 
losses made by the Company 

Agreed. The lead officer for 
Council Companies will review 
on an annual basis. The 
Shareholder Board will 
receive updates on the 
financial position at its 
scheduled meetings 

Senior 
Finance 
Manager – 
Major 
Projects and 
Corporate 

Annually 
from its first 
meeting on 
29 
September 
2022 

7 Second 
bullet 

Wirral 
Growth 
Company 

We consider that further scrutiny is 
needed of the profit recognition and 
distribution of the Wirral Growth Company 

Agreed. An external company 
has been commissioned to 
review the accounting 
treatment of this 

Senior 
Finance 
Manager – 
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Accounts 

Initial 
meeting to 
discuss scope 
and outcome 
– July 2022 

7 Third 
bullet 

Wirral 
Waters 

Monitoring arrangements should be put in 
place for the Wirral Waters One 
Guarantees. We note that the project is 

Agreed. An annual report will 
be presented to ARMC to 
report on liability for risk and 

Director of 
Resources 

Report 
proposed at 
26 October 

P
age 117



PAGE REF ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

operational from 2023/24 the mitigations in place to 
minimise the risk  

2022 
committee 

7 Fourth 
bullet 

Council 
owned 
companies 

We consider that the Council should have 
Officer representation on the Board of 
Edsential. We consider that the Board for 
each company or related investment 
should be supplemented by Non-Executive 
Directors with business experience, in 
order to better protect the Council’s 
commercial interests 

Officers not able to agree. 
Will be taken as a 
recommendation to the next 
Shareholder Board 

Monitoring 
Officer 

19 
September 
2022 

8 First 
bullet 

Oversight of 
financial 
forecasts and 
business 
planning 

There should be ongoing assessment of 
risks relating to the entity, supported by 
processes to ensure that risks are 
highlighted in the business plan and 
managed as part of the Council’s overall 
risk management approach, with 
appropriate escalation and reporting 

Agreed. Will be considered as 
part of the quarterly review of 
corporate risks by SLT and 
ARMC 

Head of 
Internal 
Audit, Risk 
and Business 
Continuity 

Embedded 
into the 
quarterly 
review 
process 

8 Second 
bullet 

Reporting The Council should continue to record 
evidence of formal periodic shareholder/ 
Chair/ CEO meetings with effective 
supporting papers to inform subsequent 
Company Board meetings 

Agreed. The current process 
that the Council has in place 
to record evidence of formal 
meetings will continue 

Monitoring 
Officer 

As per the 
meeting 
timetable 

8 Third 
bullet 

Skills The Council should continue to run robust 
training for Officers and Members on their 
roles and responsibilities  

Agreed. This is already part of 
the annual Members training 
programme and will form part 
of the Officer programme 

Assistant 
Director for 
HR & OD and 
Head of 
Democratic 
and Member 
Services 

As part of the 
annual 
programme 

P
age 118



PAGE REF ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

8 Fourth 
bullet 

Skills Fit and proper persons tests should be 
performed to ensure there are no conflicts 
of interest arising from the appointment of 
Officers to Boards or Members to panels 
and Committees 

Agreed. The Council has a 
robust process for declaration 
of conflict and personal 
interest which also forms part 
of the Internal Audit review 
schedule 

Monitoring 
Officer 

Immediate 

8 Fifth 
bullet 

Continuity of 
Service 

The Council should monitor the training of 
new members to ensure they have the 
skills to participate in commercial 
discussions as part of their legal duty to act 
in the companies’ interest.  

Officers not fully able to 
agree. Will be taken as a 
recommendation to the next 
Shareholder Board 

Monitoring 
Officer 

19 
September 
2022 

8 Sixth 
bullet 

Continuity of 
Service 

The Council should provide detailed 
minutes and papers presented at 
committees to new members to absorb as 
part of their orientation 

Agreed. As part of new 
Member induction, all new 
Members are provided with 
details of how to access past 
minutes and papers of 
meetings 

Head of 
Democratic 
and Member 
Services 

Annual in 
May and as 
required for 
by-elections 

8 Seventh 
bullet 

Continuous 
improvement 

The Council should also maintain a record 
of how it is operating against the Local 
Partnerships checklist in the paper ‘Local 
Authority Company Review Guidance – a 
toolkit for undertaking strategic and 
governance reviews of wholly or partly 
owned council commercial entities’ 

Agreed. The toolkit will be 
included on the next meeting 
of the Corporate Governance 
Group for discussion as how 
to take forward to review and 
monitor 

Director of 
Resources 

4 August 
2022 

8 Eighth 
bullet 

Accounting The Council should ensure that accounting 
advice is received before entering into any 
complex or substantial contract 

Agreed. An external 
organisation has been 
commissioned to provide such 
advice 

Senior 
Finance 
Manager – 
Strategy, 
Policy and 

Immediate 

P
age 119



PAGE REF ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

Accounts 

8 Ninth 
bullet 

Accounting The Council should obtain accounting 
advice for Wirral Waters One and the 
Wirral Growth Company Birkenhead 
Commercial District Office Building Project 
as soon as possible  

Agreed. An external 
organisation has been 
commissioned to provide such 
advice 

Senior 
Finance 
Manager – 
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Accounts 

Initial 
meeting to 
discuss scope 
and outcome 
– July 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNAUAL AUDIT REPORT 

P
age 120



Recommendations: 

PAGE REC ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

15 1 Financial 
Sustainability 

The Council should 
implement the 
recommendations outlined 
in the CIPFA Local 
Government Finance 
Report.  Specifically, the 
Council should take steps 
to address issues in the 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy in order to make it 
more realistic and 
reflective of financial 
challenges facing the 
Council and should ensure 
it has appropriate 
arrangements in place to 
deliver its savings plans. 

Agreed. The Council is implementing the 
recommendations of the CIPFA Local 
Government Finance Report. These are being 
monitored by the Independent Assurance 
Panel and are reported through the Policy and 
Resources Committee and Full Council. The 
first formal reporting to the Committee was 8 
June and 11 July at Council. which included the 
Chair of the Independent Assurance Panel’s 
report to the Department of Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities (DLUHC).  The 
revised Medium Term Financial Strategy was 
taken and approved at the Policy and 
Resources Committee on 1 December 2021. 

Director of 
Resources 

Immediate 

16 2 Financial 
Sustainability 

The Council should review 
its capital programme to 
ensure that the revenue 
implications of additional 
borrowing are affordable 

Agreed. The Medium-Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) 2022 to 2027 includes the full cost 
implication of the 5 year capital programme. 
The MTFP is updated on a rolling annual basis 
and will continue to include the full revenue 
impact of the capital programme on a annual 
basis. 
 

Assistant 
Director of 
Finance and 
Investment 

Immediate 

17 3 Financial 
Sustainability 

Risk and sensitivity analysis 
should be incorporated 
into financial forecasts  

Agreed. The 2021/22 and 2022/23 budget 
included sensitivity analysis of funding, 
pressures and savings on a pessimistic, mid-

Financial 
Assurance 
Manager 

Immediate 

P
age 121



PAGE REC ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

ground and optimistic basis to provide 
Members will a full overview of the three 
different scenarios. This is embedded now into 
our budget setting process from 2021/22. A 
part of the 2021/22 and 2022/23 budget 
setting process, all savings and pressures were 
RAG rated for risk and this has also been in 
place for in-year savings monitoring since 
2021/22. However, this process will be 
expended to apply to future financial forecasts  

18 4 Financial 
Sustainability 

Improvements are required 
to the quality and 
timeliness of financial data 
being used in the financial 
planning and monitoring 
process 

Agreed.  For the 2022/23 budget process, a 
new evidence-based approach was used for 
business cases for savings and pressures. The 
content of which was internally independently 
assessed for viability, feasibility and 
deliverability. Where business cases lacked the 
relevant information, they were returned to 
the authors for further clarification and 
detail.  The business cases were also externally 
assessed by Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) to provide 
additional robust analysis.  The internal process 
was embedded into the budget setting process 
in 2022/23 and the same process is being 
followed for 23/24. The 23/24 process 
commenced significantly earlier with draft 
proposals prepared by 6 May 2022. The 
Implementation of the new Financial System 
will also support this recommendation 

Assistant 
Director Finance 
and Investment 

Immediate 
and for the 
new 
financial 
system will 
be in-line 
with the 
current plan 

P
age 122



PAGE REC ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

 

27 5 Governance Governance arrangements 
for the oversight of the 
regeneration agenda and in 
issuing financial guarantees 
for leases and acquisition 
of assets and financial 
guarantees should be 
significantly strengthened. 
Accounting advice should 
be received prior to 
entering into transactions 

Agreed. A new Regeneration Governance 
Board has been introduced that is chaired by 
the Chief Executive and has the Section 151 
Officer and Monitoring Officer attending. No 
further financial guarantees for leases have 
been made since those reported in this report 
and there are, at present, no intention to do so 
for the future.  Where there may be the 
potential to enter into such transactions in the 
future, accounting advice will be received in 
advance and the outcome reported to 
Members as part of the decision-making 
process before any transactions are entered 
into 
 

Monitoring 
Officer and 
Section 151 
Officer 

Immediate 

28 6 Governance The Council should review 
its risk management 
arrangements to ensure 
that they are identifying 
the significant risks 
impacting the Council  

Agreed. Following the issuing of the two 
DLUHC reports in 2021, the risk management 
arrangements have been reviewed and 
improved. There has been an all member risk 
workshop and the Corporate and Directorate 
Risk Registers have been fully reviewed and 
revised and reported through to the Audit and 
Risk Committee. The Corporate risks are also 
shared with the Policy and Resources Finance-
Sub Committee. SLT review corporate risk 
quarterly 

Head of Internal 
Audit, Risk and 
Business 
Continuity 

Immediate 

33 7 Improving 
Economy, 

Key Performance Indicators 
should be linked to the 

Agreed. The refreshed Wirral Plan was 
reported to full Council on 11 July. The plan 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Annually  

P
age 123



PAGE REC ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

Efficiency 
and 
Effectiveness 

Wirral Plan with 
performance monitoring 
reported to the Policy and 
Resources Committee 

includes indicators to measure the success of 
the implementation of the Wirral Plan and 
included the outturn from 2021/22 
 

34 8 Improving 
Economy, 
Efficiency 
and 
Effectiveness 

Regular and thorough 
benchmarking reviews 
should be carried out to 
ensure service provision 
meets the strategic 
priorities and are cost 
effective  

Agreed. During 2021/22 benchmarking data 
was used to determine where the Council 
provided high-cost services and where they 
did, to build efficiencies from these into the 
forthcoming budget rounds. This was 
evidenced with the 2022/23 budget whereby 
Leisure and Cultural Services, who did 
benchmark high had significant budget 
savings.  The Strategic Change Programme, to 
be delivered through a range of Service 
Reviews, includes the use of benchmarking 
when undertaking the service reviews. 
Benchmarking data was also used to determine 
the phasing of service reviews with the highest 
cost services being prioritised in the early 
phases. The council subscribes to the 
benchmarking package CFO Insights. 

Assistant 
Director for 
Strategic 
Change 

Immediate 

35 9 Improving 
Economy, 
Efficiency 
and 
Effectiveness 

The Procurement Strategy 
should be updated to 
ensure it meetings the 
requirements of the 
National Strategy with 
clear links to social value 
and transparency.  The 
number of purchases 

Agreed. During 2021/22 a project was 
launched to review Procurement and 
Commissioning functions. This project is 
continuing and is making good progress in 
change the culture of the organisation 
regarding procurement and commissioning 
activity. As part of the project, a new model for 
Procurement and Commissioning will be 

Assistant 
Director Finance 
and Investment 

Immediate 
 
ARMC 
October 26 
2022 

P
age 124



PAGE REC ITEM RECOMMENDATION RESPONSE LEAD DATE 

without a purchase order 
and waiver and extension 
should be reduced.  

recommended along with a refreshed 
Procurement Strategy. The number of non-
purchase orders, waivers and exceptions has 
significantly reduced and an update will be 
reported to ARMC in October 

36 10 Improving 
Economy, 
Efficiency 
and 
Effectiveness 

The Council should take 
action to improve recycling 
rates and should work with 
its partners to revise the 
levy mechanism to support 
this improvement  

Agreed. Liverpool City region (LCR) now has an 
established and functioning strategic waste 
partnership which is developing the region’s 
‘Zero Waste Strategy’ and as  part of this make 
recommendations for future regional waste 
management governance. Clear reporting lines 
have been created between the region’s 
Leaders and Mayors, Chief Executive’s Group, 
the Strategic Waste Management Partnership 
and district Portfolio Holders. The LCR Zero 
Waste Strategy set out performance 
improvement measures for recycling, waste 
minimisation, reuse and upcycling. Wirral 
Council is using the Zero Waste Strategy to 
develop its own waste strategy and 
performance improvement plan. The LCR 
Strategic Waste Management Partnership is 
also working closely with the LCR finance 
director’s group to review the waste levy 
mechanism.   

Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Immediate 

 

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Risk Management Committee – Terms of Reference 
 
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a key component of Wirral  Council’s 
corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, 
assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and financial 
standards. 

 
The Committee provides independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and the associated control environment, independent 
scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance to the extent that it 
affects the Council’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to 
oversee the financial reporting process. It oversees internal audit and external audit, 
helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

 
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is charged by full Council to:- 

(a) Governance 

(i) Consider the Annual Governance Statement, and be satisfied that this 
statement is comprehensive, properly reflects the risk and internal control 
environment, including the system of internal audit, taking into account 
internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
council’s framework of governance, risk management and control, and 
includes an agreed action plan for improvements where necessary. 

(b) Internal Audit and Internal Control 

(i) With Chief Officers, to provide proactive leadership and direction on audit 
governance issues and champion audit and internal control throughout the 
Council. 

(ii) Consider annually the effectiveness of the system of internal audit including 
Internal Audit Charter, Strategy, Plan of work and performance and that those 
arrangements are compliant with all applicable statutes and regulations, 
including the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 
Application Note. 

(iii) Consider the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report and a summary of internal 
audit activity which include an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s internal controls including risk management, any corporately 
significant issues arising, and receive assurance that action has been taken 
as necessary. 

(iv) Consider regular summary reports on the work of internal audit including key 
findings, issues of concern and actions in hand as a result of internal audit 
activity. 

(v) Consider reports showing progress against the audit plan and proposed 
amendments to the audit plan. 

(vi) Ensure there are effective relationships between internal audit and external 
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies and that the value of the 
audit process is actively promoted. 

(c)  Risk Management & Control 

(i) Provide proactive leadership and direction on risk management governance 
issues and champion risk management throughout the Council and ensure 

Page 127

Agenda Annex



that the Full Council is kept sufficiently informed to enable it to approve the 
Council’s Risk Management Policy and Framework and that proper insurance 
exists where appropriate. 

(ii) Consider the effectiveness of the system of risk management arrangements. 
(iii) Consider an annual report and quarterly reports with respect to risk 

management including, an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s risk management, any corporately significant issues arising, and 
receive assurance that action has been taken as necessary. 

(iv) Receive assurances that action is being taken on risk related issues identified 
by both internal and external auditors and other inspectors. 

(v) Independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance 
to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk. 

(vi) Report to full Council as appropriate. 

(d) Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

(i) Provide proactive leadership and direction on Anti-Fraud and Corruption and 
champion Anti-Fraud and Corruption throughout the Council. 

(ii) Consider the effectiveness of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption 
arrangements. 

(iii) Consider an annual report and other such reports, including an annual plan on 
activity with respect to Anti-Fraud and Corruption performance and receive 
assurances that action is being taken where necessary. 

(iv) To be appraised of any steps arising from Whistleblowing investigations and 
to ensure appropriate actions are being taken and reported. 

(e) Annual Statement of Accounts 

(i) Consider the external auditor’s reports and opinions, relevant requirements of 
the International Standards on Auditing and any other reports to members 
with respect to the Accounts, including the Merseyside Pension Fund and 
approve the Accounts on behalf of the Council and report required actions to 
the Council. Monitor management action in response to issues raised by the 
external auditor. 

(ii) Consider the External Auditors Annual Governance Report and approve the 
Letter of Representation with respect to the Accounts and endorse the action 
plan contained in this Report. 

(f) External Audit 

(i) Consider any other reports of external audit and other inspection agencies. 
(ii) Ensure there are effective relationships between external audit and internal 

audit. 
(iii) To liaise with the Public Sector Audit Appointments over the appointment of 

the Council’s external auditors and make recommendations to Council. 

(g) Merseyside Pension Fund 

(i) Following presentation to the Pensions Committee and with due regard to any 
comments and observations made, consider the draft Accounts of the 
Merseyside Pension Fund and authorise the publication and release of these 
accounts to the external auditors for the audit by the statutory deadline. 

(h) Treasury Management 

Page 128



(i) Consider the effectiveness of the governance, control and risk management 
arrangements for Treasury Management and ensure that they meet best 
practice. 

(i) Partnerships and other bodies 

(i) To deal with any audit or ethical standards issues which may arise in relation 
to partnership working, joint committees and other local authorities or bodies.  

(ii) Ensure that there are effective governance arrangements in place for Wirral 
Borough Council’s wholly owned limited companies and trading vehicles.  

(iii) Receive and review the financial statements and dividend policies of any 
Wirral Borough Council limited companies and to consider recommending 
corrective action where appropriate  

(j) Administration 

(i) Review the Committee’s own terms of reference no less frequently than 
annually and where appropriate make recommendations to the Council for 
changes. 

(ii)  Ensure members of the committee have sufficient training to effectively 
undertake the duties of this committee. 

(iii) Consider the Annual Report of the Chair of the Committee. 
 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 2020-21, AUDITORS REPORT COMPANY GOVERNANCE 2020-21 AND MERSEYSIDE WASTE VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT 2020-21
	Appendix 1 - Wirral Council Auditors Annual Report 2020-21
	Appendix 2 - Wirral Council Auditor's Annual Report Company Governance 2020-21
	Appendix 3 - Merseyside Waste VFM Report
	Appendix 4 - VFM Review Governance of Company and Other Investments - Recommendations

	 Terms of Reference

